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Independent auditor’s report

To the General Assemhly of Alternatif Finansal Kiralama Anoninı Şirketi

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the fınancial statements of Alternatif Finansal Kiralama Anonim Şirketi (the Company),
which comprise the statement of fınancial position as at 31 December 2019, and the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash tlows for the year then
ended, and notes to the fınancial statements, including a summary of signiflcant accounfing policies.

in our opinion, the accompanying fınancial statements present fairiy, in ali material respects, the fınancial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2019, and its financial performance and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with international Financiai Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with lnternationai Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors responsibilitles for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are ndependent of the Company in accordance
wiih the international Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in Turkey, and we have fulfihled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the IESBA Code. We beiieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company as at 31 December 2018 were audited by another audit fırm,
which expressed an unqualifıed opinion in their report issued on 9 May 2019.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most signiflcance in our
audit of the fınancial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the fınancial statements asa whoie, and in forming the auditor’s opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibiiities described in the Auditor’s responsibiıities for the avdit of the
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, oür audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters beiow, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
flnanciai statements.
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As presented in Note 2, the Company
measured expected oredit losses for fınancial
assets in accordance with IFRS 9 “Financial
lnştruments Standards”. The rationale
reasons for seleoting IFRS 9 implementation
and impairment of fınancial assets as key
audit matter are as follows;

Amount of on balance sheet tenis that
are subject to expected credit Ioss
calculation is material to the fınancial
statements.

- The applications IFRS 9 are complex
and comprehensive.

- The ciassifıcation of the financial assets
is based on the Company’s business
model and characteristics of the
contractual cash flows in accordance
with IFRS 9 and the Company uses
signifıcantjudgment on the assessment
of the business model and identification
of the complex contractual cash flow
characteristics of financial instruments.

- Risks related to the policies established
by the management with the
compliance and requirements of the
legislation and other applications for the
calculation of expected credit losses.

- The complexity and intensity of the
control environment in the processes
designed er reorganized for TFRS 9

- Estimations and assumptions used in
expected credit losses are new,
important and complex.

- Complex and comprehensive
disclosure requirements of TFRS 9.

Our audit procedures in addition to our current audit
p roced u re 5

Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies as to the requirements of FRS 9,
Companys past performance, local and global
practices.
Evaluation of the key judgments, assumptions,
methods used for caiculation of expected credit
loss determined by the management, and whether
the data source is reasonable or not, and their
compliance and standard requirements in light of
industry and global practices.
Testing criteha used for determining the
contractual cash flows including interest payments
with regard to solely principal and principal balance
of financial assets on a sample basis and
evaluation of Companys business model.
Evaluation of signiflcant increase in credit risk,
defınition of default, definition of restructuring,
probability of default, loss giyen default, exposure
at default and macro-economic variables, and
related basic and signifıcant estimates and
assumptions determined for calculation process of
expected credit Ioss and whether these
assumptions determined by fınancial risk
management are in line with the Bank’s historical
performance. legislation, and reasonableness of
the estimation process regarding future
performance and investigation of credit risk
portfolio on a sample basis.
Evaluation of the accuracy and completeness of
attributes of the data used for the calculation
process of expected credit losses.
Detailed testing of mathematical verification of
expected credit losses’ calculation on a sample
basis.
Evaluation of the assuniptions and estimations
used for the individually assessed fınancial assets
based on expert judgment.
Evaluating the necessity and accuracy of the
updates made or required updates after the
modeling process.
Auditing of disclosures related to TFRS 9.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impact of İFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
Standard and recognition of impakmen:
on financial assets and refated signiflcant
disclosures

(2)
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Responsibilities of management and those oharged with governance for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparatian and fair presentation of the flnancial statements in
accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary ta enable

the preparation af financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or errar.

in preparing the fınancial statements, management is respansible for assessing the Campany’s abflity

ta continue as a gaing cancern, disclasing. as applicable, matters related ta gaing cancern and using

the going cancern basis of accounting unless management either intends to Iiquidate the Company or

ta cease operations, or has na realistic aiternative butto da sa.

Those charged with governance are responsible for averseeing the Campany’s fınancial reporting

process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our abjectives ara ta abtain reasonable assurance abaut whether the fınancial statements as a whole

are free from material misstatement, whether due ta fraud or errar, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our apinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is nota guarantee that an
audit conducted in accardance with SAs wili always deteot a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or errar and are considered material if, individualiy or in the
aggregate, they cauld reasanabiy be expected to infiuence the econamic decisians of users taken an

the basis af these financial statements.

As pan of an audit in accordance with ISAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain
prafessianal skepticism thraughaut the audit. We alsa:

- ldentify and assess the risks af material misstatement af the financial statements, whether due ta
fraud ar errar, design and perform audit pracedures respansive ta thase risks, and abtain audit
evidence that is sufflcient and apprapriate ta pravide a basis for our apinion. The risk af not
detecting a material misstatement resulting fram fraud is higher than for ana resulting ftom eman.
as fraud may invalve callusian, fongery, intentianal omissians. misrepresentatians, ar the averride

af intennal control.

- Obtain an undenstanding of internal cantral relevant ta the audit in arder ta design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpase of expressing an
apinian on the effectiveness af the Campany’s internal cantral.

- Evaluate the apprapriateness of accaunting paIices uşed and the reasanableness of accauntıng
estimates and related disclosures made by rnanagement.

- Conclude an the appropriateness af management’s use af the gaing cancern basis of accaunting

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, ‘uhether a material uncertainty exists related ta events

or canditians that may cast signıficant doubt on the Campany’s ability to cantinue as a gaing

cancern. Ifwe conclude that a material Lıncertainty exists, ‘Ne are reguired ta draw attentian in aur

auditar’s report ta the related disclasures in the Fınancial statements ar, if such disclosures ara
inadequate, ta madiiy aur apinian. Our conclusians are based an the audıt evidence abtaned up
ta the date af aur auditars report. Hawever. future events ar conditions may cause the Campany
ta cease ta cantınue as a gaing cancern.

- Evaluate the averail presentatian, structure and cantent of the financial statements, including the

disciosures, and whether the hnanciai staternents represent the underiying transactıons and

evants ın a manner that achieves fain presentation.

(3)
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We communicate with those charged with gavernance regarding, arnang other rnatters, the planned
scape and timing af the audit and signiflcant audit findings. inoluding any signifıcant deficiencies in
internal control that we dentify during aw audit.

We also provide thase charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and ta cammunicate with thern ali relatianships and ather
rnatters that may reasanabiy be thought ta bear an aur independence, and where apphcable. related
safeguards.

Frarn the matters cammunicated with thase charged with gavernance, we deterrnine thase rnatters that
were af mast significance in the audit af the ünanciai staternents af the current period and are <herefare
the key audit rnatters. We describe these matters in aur auditar’s repart unless law ar regulation
precludes public disclasure about the matter ar when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter shauld not be carnmunicated in our repart because the adverse cansequences of daing sa
wauid reasanabiy be expected ta outweigh the public interest benefits of such cornmunicatian.

The partner in charge of the audit resulting in this independent auditars report is Yaşar Bivas.

ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik Ananim Şirketi
8 Young Glabal Lirnited

(d)

10 March 2020
Istanbul, Türkiye
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ALTERNATİF FİNANSAL KİRALAMA A.Ş.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”), unless otherwise indicated.)

1

Notes
Audited

31 December 2019
Audited

31 December 2018

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 5 169,495 199,690
Finance lease receivables 7 1,401,335 1,877,937
Other assets and prepaid expenses 10 36,876 27,391
Derivative financial assets 6 6,561 11,253
Tangible assets, net 8 19,853 19,729
Intangible assets, net 9 1,458 1,494
Deferred tax assets 15 17,139 18,679

Total assets 1,652,717 2,156,173

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Funds borrowed 11 1,403,203 1,698,319
Debt securities issued 12 - 217,107
Account payables 13 10,805 16,933
Other liabilities 14 19,448 13,103
Other provisions 16 1,251 139
Reserve for employee benefits 17 3,370 2,754

Total liabilities 1,438,077 1,948,355

Equity

Share capital 18 86,477 86,477
Legal reserves 6,590 5,705
Cash flow hedge gains/(losses) 2 1,120 -
Revaluation surplus on building 8 3,651 3,651
Retained earnings 116,802 111,985

Total equity 214,640 207,818
Total liabilities and equity 1,652,717 2,156,173

The accompanying notes set out on pages 5 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.



ALTERNATİF FİNANSAL KİRALAMA A.Ş.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”), unless otherwise indicated.)

2

Notes
Audited

2019
Audited

2018

Interest income from finance leases 160,819 171,677
Interest income on placements and transactions with banks 4,711 2,756

Total interest income 165,530 174,433

Interest expense on funds borrowed (80,538) (74,575)
Interest expense on debt securities issued (22,886) (46,767)

Net interest income 62,106 53,091

Impairment loss on finance lease receivables 7 (44,837) (37,672)
Foreign exchange gains and (losses), net 6,464 8,543
Other income/(expense), net 24 (2,675) (915)

Operating profit 21,058 23,047

Marketing and administrative expenses 21 (3,975) (4,706)
Salaries and employee benefits 22 (9,171) (10,159)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 8,9 (986) (676)

Profit before income tax 6,926 7,506

Tax expense 15 (1,224) 565

Net profit for the year 5,702 8,071

Other comprehensive income 1,120 3,651
Items that will never be reclassified to profit or loss - 3,651
Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss 1,120 -

Cash flow hedge income / loss 1,436 -
Related deferred tax income / loss 15 (316) -

Total comprehensive income for the year 6,822 11,722
Basic earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of
the Company 20 0.00057 0.00092

The accompanying notes set out on pages 5 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements



ALTERNATİF FİNANSAL KİRALAMA A.Ş.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”), unless otherwise indicated.)

3

Notes Share capital Legal reserves

Revaluation
surplus on

building
Cash flow hedge

gains/(losses)
Retained
earnings Total

Balance at 1 January 2018 36,477 4,618 - - 122,517 163,612
Changes in accounting policy IFRS 9 - - - - (17,516) (17,516)
Restated balance at 1 January 2018 36,477 4,618 - - 105,001 146,096
Capital increase 50,000 - - - - 50,000
Transfers 19 - 1,087 - - (1,087) -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 3,651 - 8,071 11,722
Revaluation surplus on building 8 - - 3,651 - - 3,651
Net profit for the year - - - - 8,071 8,071

Balance at 31 December 2018 86,477 5,705 3,651 - 111,985 207,818
Balance at 1 January 2019 86,477 5,705 3,651 - 111,985 207,818
Transfers 19 - 885 - - (885) -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 1,120 5,702 6,822
Cash flow hedge reserves - - - 1,120 - 1,120
Net profit for the year - - - - 5,702 5,702

Balance at 31 December 2019 86,477 6,590 3,651 1,120 116,802 214,640

The accompanying notes set out on pages 5 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.



ALTERNATİF FİNANSAL KİRALAMA A.Ş.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”), unless otherwise indicated.)

4

Notes
Audited

2019
Audited

2018
Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit for the year 5,702 8,071

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 8,9 986 676
Increase in provision for employee severance payments 17 694 140
Increase in provision for employee bonuses 17 2,601 1,743
Impairment loss on finance lease receivables 7 44,837 37,672
Deferred tax (income) / expense 15 1,224 (565)
Interest received 150,066 204,930
Interest paid (106,772) (153,036)
Unrealised foreign currency losses (88,940) 70,636
Remeasurement (gain) /loss of derivative financial instruments 4,692 (3,995)

Net cash from operating activities before changes in operating
assets and liabilities 15,090 166,272

Net increase in finance lease receivables 487,355 (256,356)
Net decrease in other assets 10 (12,354) 10,572
Net (increase)/decrease in accounts payable 14 (6,128) (10,678)
Net (increase)/decrease in other liabilities (79,434) (7,135)
Employee benefits paid 17 (843) (182)

Net cash from/(used) in operating activities 388,596 (263,779)

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of tangible assets 8 (657) (16,048)
Acquisition of intangible assets 9 (437) (701)
Proceedings from sale of tangible assets 8 69 1,052
Proceedings from sale of intangible assets 9 - 241

Net cash used in investing activities (1,025) (15,456)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds/ (repayments) from funds borrowed (298,464) 309,780
Proceeds/ (repayments) from issued debt securities 12 (223,293) (25,956)
Proceeds from issue of share capital - 50,000

Net cash from from/(used) in financing activities (521,757) 333,824

Net decrease/(increase) in cash and cash equivalents (119,096) 220,861
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 88,940 (70,636)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 5 199,649 49,424

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 5 169,493 199,649

The accompanying notes set out on pages 5 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.



ALTERNATİF FİNANSAL KİRALAMA A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”), unless otherwise indicated.)

5

NOTE 1 - REPORTING ENTITY

Alternatif Finansal Kiralama A.Ş. (“the Company”) was established in February 1997, in order to
operate in Turkey pursuant to the licence obtained from the Undersecretariat of Treasury for the purpose
of financial leasing as permitted by the law number 3226. The Company started leasing operations in
1997 and its registered head office address is Vadistanbul Bulvar, Ayazağa Mahallesi Cendere Caddesi
No:109M 2D Blok Kat:3 Sarıyer, İstanbul, Turkey.

As of 31 December 2019, the Company has 37 employees (2018: 52).

The Company is mainly engaged in leasing of various equipment, construction machinery including
industrial machinery and real-estate equipment. The Company operates predominantly in one
geographical region, Turkey.

The Company’s main shareholder is Alternatifbank A.Ş. and the ultimate shareholder is the Commercial
Bank (P.S.Q.C.). Anadolu Endüstri Holding A.Ş. decided to use to right to share sales on 18 July 2013
according to “Shareholder’s Agreement” which was signed with The Commercial Bank (P.S.Q.C.), and
Anadolu Endüstri Holding A.Ş.  sold their 25% of the shares of Alternatifbank A.Ş. to The Commercial
Bank (P.S.Q.C.) on 19 December 2016. After this transaction the Commercial Bank (P.S.Q.C.) has
become 100% indirect shareholder of Alternatif Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adapted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of presentation and statement of compliance

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”), including the International Accounting Standards (“IAS”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and interpretations issued by the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”).

The Company maintains its books of account and prepares its statutory financial statements in thousands
of Turkish Lira (“TL”) which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency, in accordance
with communiqué “Uniform Chart of Accounts, Disclosures and Form and Nature of Financial
Statements to be Issued By Leasing, Factoring and Consumer Finance Companies” (“Financial
Statement’s Communiqué”) issued by the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency (“BRSA”),
Turkish Commercial Code, Leasing Law and tax legislation. Turkish tax legislation required all leased
assets be capitalized on the balance sheet of the lessor whether the lease is operating or finance lease
until July 1, 2003. In accordance with amendments in Turkish tax law dated April 24, 2003, the lessors
started to apply rules similar to IAS 17: “Leases” for the leasing transactions they entered after July 1,
2003 in their statutory financial statements.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note
2.

The financial statements of the Company are authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 10 March
2020. The General Assembly has the power to amend the financial statements after its issue.



ALTERNATİF FİNANSAL KİRALAMA A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”), unless otherwise indicated.)
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis; except for derivative financial
instruments and buildings, which have all been measured at fair value.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in TL, which is the Company’s functional currency. Except as
indicated, financial statements presented in TL has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

Going concern

The Company prepared its financial statements on the going concern basis.

Accounting for the effects of hyperinflation

IAS 29 requires that financial statements prepared in the currency of a hyperinflationary economy be
stated in terms of the measuring unit current at the reporting date, and that corresponding figures for
previous years be restated in the same terms. One characteristic that necessitates the application of IAS
29 is a cumulative three-year inflation rate approaching or exceeding 100%.

The cumulative three-year inflation rate in Turkey was 35.6% as at 31 December 2005, based on the
Turkish nation-wide wholesale price indices announced by the Turkish Statistical Institute. This,
together with the sustained positive trend in quantitative factors, such as the stabilization in capital and
money markets, decrease in interest rates and the appreciation of TL against the USD and other hard
currencies have been taken into consideration to categories Turkey as a non-hyperinflationary economy
under IAS 29 effective from 1 January 2006. Therefore, IAS 29 has not been applied in the preparation
of the accompanying financial statements beginning from 1 January 2006.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Allowances for Credit Losses

The specific counterparty component of the total allowances for impairment applies to claims evaluated
individually for impairment and is based upon management’s best estimate of the present value of the
cash flows that are expected to be received. In estimating these cash flows, management makes
judgments about the counterparty’s financial situation and the net realizable value of any underlying
collateral.

Assets accounted for at amortised cost are evaluated for impairment on a basis described in accounting
policy Note 2.



ALTERNATİF FİNANSAL KİRALAMA A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”), unless otherwise indicated.)
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Use of estimates and judgements (Continued)

Measurement of Fair Values

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the
most advantageous market to which the Company has access at that date. The fair value of a liability
reflects its non-performance risk.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market observable data as
far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for identical instrument.

Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly
(i.e., derived from prices). This category includes instruments using valuation techniques where all
significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.

Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all
instruments where the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the
unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation.

Income taxes

The Company is subject to income taxes. Significant estimates are required in determining the provision
for income taxes. Management records deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. The
recoverability of the deferred tax assets is reviewed regularly. These estimations disclosed in Note 15
are reviewed regularly.

Reserve for employee severance payments

In accordance with the existing social legislation, the Company is required to make lump-sum payments
to employees upon termination of their employment based on certain conditions. In calculating the
related liability to be recorded in the financial statements, the Bank uses assumptions such as discount
rate, turnover of employees and future change in salaries/limits in order to make the best estimate. These
estimations disclosed in Note 17 are reviewed regularly.

Minimum finance lease receivables

Leases where the entire risks and rewards incident to ownership of an asset are substantially transferred
to the lessee are classified as minimum finance lease receivables. A receivable at an amount equal to the
present value of the lease payments, including any guaranteed residual value, is recognized. The
difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable is unearned interest
income and is recognized over the term of the lease using the effective interest rate method.



ALTERNATİF FİNANSAL KİRALAMA A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”), unless otherwise indicated.)
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Loans and borrowings

Loans and borrowings are recognized initially at cost, net of any transaction costs incurred. Subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and borrowings are stated at amortized cost with any difference between cost
and redemption value being recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings.

Derivative financial instruments

The major derivative instruments utilized by the Company are currency swaps. Derivative financial
instruments of the Company are classified under IFRS 9, “Derivative Financial Assets Designated at
Fair Value through Profit or Loss”. Payables and receivables arising from the derivative instruments are
recorded in the off-balance sheet accounts at their contractual values. Derivative transactions are valued
at their fair values subsequent to their acquisition. In accordance with the classification of derivative
financial instruments, if the fair value is positive, the amount is classified as “Derivative Financial Assets
Designated at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss” or “Derivative Financial Assets Designated at Fair
Value Through Other Comprehensive Income”, if the fair value is negative, the amount is classified as
“Derivative Financial Liabilities Designated at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss” or “Derivative
Financial Liabilities Designated at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income”. The fair value
differences of derivative financial instruments are recognized in the income statement under trading
profit/loss line in profit/loss from derivative financial transactions.

The Company has started to apply cash flow hedge accounting as of 4 March 2019 by fixing its forward
operating lease receivables in Euro (“EUR”, “EURO”), subject to the contract, through TL currency
swap derivatives.

Cash Flow Hedge
As of 21 March 2019, the Company has started to apply cash flow hedge accounting through the TL
currency swap derivative transaction, by fixing its forward operating lease receivables in US dollars
(“USD”), subject to the contract.

In both of the cash flow hedge accounting that the Company started to implement; As a hedged item,
the Company has determined its future operating lease receivables, and as a hedging instrument,
currency swap derivative transactions in EUR and USD are taken into consideration, respectively.

As of 31 December 2019, total net after tax profit / (loss) accounted under equity through cash flow
hedge accounting is TL 1,120 (31 December 2018: None).

Tangible assets

All tangible assets are carried at cost, restated equivalent to purchasing power of TL at
31 December 2005 less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated over the restated amounts
of tangible assets by using the straight-line method to write down the restated cost of each asset to their
residual values over their estimated useful life as follows:

Buildings 50 years
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 5 years

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (“higher of net
selling price” and “value in use”), it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of the impaired tangible assets represents the net selling price.

Gains and losses on disposal of tangible assets are determined by reference to their carrying amount and
are taken into account in determining operating profit.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Company applies a revaluation model for the buildings in accordance with IAS 16 Accounting
Standard for Recognition of Tangible Fixed Assets. As a result of the revaluation, the increase in the
book value of the buildings has been stated to the other comprehensive income or expense account in
the equity account group which will not be reclassified to profit or loss. As a result of the appraisal of
buildings, as of 31 December 2018, tangible assets increased by TL 3,651 before tax.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are capitalized at cost. Following initial recognition intangible assets are carried at cost
less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets mainly
comprise of rights and amortised by using the straight-line method over their useful lives of
5 years.

Calculation of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses is calculated based on a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e. the
present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of the financial instrument. A cash shortfall is
the difference between the cash flows that are due based on the contract and the cash flows that are
expected to be received.

Probability of Default (PD): PD refers to the likelihood that a loan will default, which is usually set at
12 months, given certain characteristics:

§  12-month PD: as the estimated probability of default occurring within the next 12 months.

§  Lifetime PD: as the estimated probability of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial
instrument.

Loss Given Default (LGD): If a loan default occurs, it represents the economic loss incurred on the loan.
It is expressed as a percentage.

LGD calculations are performed using historical data which best reflects current conditions. LGD
summarizes all cash flows from customers subsequent to default. It covers all costs and collections that
occur during the collection cycle, including collections from collaterals. It also includes the "time value
of money" calculated by means of deducting costs and additional losses from the present value of
collections.

Under IFRS 9, loss allowances are measured on either of the following bases:

§  12-month ECLs: these are ECLs that result from possible default events within the 12 months after
the reporting date; and

§  Lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument.

Lifetime ECL measurement applies if the credit risk of a financial asset at the reporting date has
increased significantly since initial recognition and 12-month ECL measurement applies if it has not.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if there is a
qualitative indicator like restructuring. The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

§   The borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the
Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held).

§   The borrower is past due more than 1 day.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Calculation of expected credit losses (Continued)

Stage 1: 12-month expected credit loss represents the expected credit losses that result from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date and
calculated as the portion of lifetime expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit loss is calculated
based on a probability of default realized within 12 months after the reporting date. Such expected 12-
month probability of default is applied on an expected exposure at default, multiplied with loss given
default rate and discounted with the original effective interest rate.

Stage 2: When there is a significant increase in credit risk since origination, lifetime expected credit
losses is calculated. Including multiple scenario usage, probability of default and loss given default rates
are estimated through the life of the instrument. Estimated cash shortfalls are discounted by using the
original effective interest rate.

Stage 3: Lifetime expected credit losses are recognized for the impaired leasing receivables. The
methodology is similar to stage 2 and the probability of default and loss given default are taken into
account as 100%.

Purchased or originated credit impaired assets: Purchased or originated credit impaired assets are
financial assets that are credit impaired on initial recognition. The Company recognizes the cumulative
changes in lifetime ECLs since initial recognition, based on a probability of weighting of the scenarios,
discounted by the credit-adjusted EIR.

Financial instruments

Initial recognition of financial instruments

          The Company shall recognize a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position
when, and only when, the entity becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A regular
way purchase or sale of financial assets shall be recognized and derecognized, as applicable, using trade
date accounting or settlement date accounting. Purchase and sale transactions of securities are
accounted.

Initial measurement of financial instruments

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on the contractual conditions
and the relevant business model. Except for the assets in the scope of IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts
with customers, at initial recognition, the Company measures financial asset or financial liabilities at
fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through
profit/loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset
or financial liability.

Classification of financial assets

IFRS 9, the Company classifies a financial asset on the basis of its contractual cash flow characteristics
if the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows or within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. In order to assess whether the element provides
consideration for only the passage of time, an entity applies judgement and considers relevant factors
such as the currency in which the financial asset is denominated and the period for which the interest
rate is set. When the contractual conditions are exposed to the risks which are not consistent with the
basic lending arrangement or variability of cash flows, the relevant financial asset is measured at fair
value through profit or loss. The Company tested all financial assets whether their “contractual cash-
flows solely represent payments of principal and interest” and assessed the asset classification within
the business model.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Assessment of business model

As per IFRS 9, the Company’s business model is determined at a level that reflects how groups of
financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. The Company’s
business models are divided into three categories.

Business model aimed to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows

This is a model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows are managed
to realise cash flows by collecting contractual payments over the life of the instrument. The financial
assets that are held within the scope of this business model are measured at amortized cost when the
contractual terms of the financial asset meet the condition of giving rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Receivables from
Banks, investments under financial assets measured at amortized cost, leasing receivables and other
receivables are assessed within this business model.

Other business models

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss when they are not held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit/loss are assessed in this business model.

Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified in three main categories as listed below:

- Financial assets measured at fair value through profit/loss
- Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and
- Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit/Loss” are financial assets other than the ones that are
managed with business model that aims to hold to collect contractual cash flows or business model that
aims to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of the assets; and if
the contractual terms of the financial asset do not lead to cash flows representing solely payments of
principal and interest at certain date; that are either acquired for generating a profit from short term
fluctuations in prices or are financial assets included in a portfolio aiming to short-term profit making.
Financial assets at the fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value and measured
at their fair value after recognition. All gains and losses arising from these valuations are reflected in
the income statement.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income:

In addition to Financial assets within a business model that aims to hold to collect contractual cash flows
and aims to hold to sell, financial asset with contractual terms that lead to cash flows are solely payments
of principal and interest at certain dates, they are classified as fair value through other comprehensive
income. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognized by adding
transaction cost to acquisition cost reflecting the fair value of the financial asset. After the recognition,
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are measured at fair value. Interest
income calculated with effective interest rate method arising from financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income and dividend income from equity securities are recorded to income
statement.

“Unrealized gains and losses” arising from the difference between the amortized cost and the fair value
of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are not reflected in the income
statement of the period until the acquisition of the asset, sale of the asset, the disposal of the asset, and
impairment of the asset and they are accounted under the “Other comprehensive income/expense items
to recycled to profit loss” under shareholders’ equity. Equity securities, which are classified as financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, that have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair values can be reliably measured are carried at fair value. Equity securities that do
not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair values cannot be reliably measured
are carried at cost, less provision for impairment.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are classified as financial assets measured at amortized cost.
Financial assets measured at amortized cost are initially recognized at acquisition cost including the
transaction costs which reflect the fair value of those instruments and subsequently recognized at
amortized cost by using effective interest rate method. Interest income obtained from financial assets
measured at amortized cost is accounted in income statement.

Finance lease receivables and other receivables

Finance lease receivables and other receivables are carried at fair value at initial recognition and they
are carried at amortized cost subsequent to initial recognition, using the effective interest method.

When the Company annuls overdue foreign currency leasing contracts, it converts foreign currency
receivables into TL using the exchange rate at the annulment date and does not evaluate such amounts
starting from the annulment date. Since invoice issuance for such receivables is ceased, the Company
also ceases its income accrual calculation starting from the annulment date.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, demand and time deposits with a maturity period of
three months or less. Time deposits are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9 replaced the “incurred loss” model in IAS 39 with an “expected credit loss” (ECL) model. In
this context, it has been necessary to evaluate how the economic factors that will be determined by
weighting according to the probabilities of realization affect the ECLs. The new impairment model is
applied to financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income or measured at amortized
cost (other than investments in equity instruments) and contract assets. The financial assets at amortized
cost consist of leasing receivables, purchased or originated credit impaired assets, and cash and cash
equivalents.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes
its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company
continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds
received.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Subsequently, financial liabilities are stated at amortised cost and any difference between net
proceeds and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period of the financial
liability using the effective yield method. All borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire.

Income taxes

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

a. Income taxes currently payable

Income taxes (“corporation tax”) currently payable are calculated based in accordance with the Turkish
tax legislation (Note 15).

Taxes other than on income are recorded within other income / (expense) (Note 15).

b. Deferred income taxes

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. The rates enacted, or substantively enacted, at
the balance sheet date are used to determine the deferred tax. Deferred tax assets resulting from
temporary differences in the recognition of expense for income tax, and for financial reporting purposes
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the deferred tax asset can be utilised.



ALTERNATİF FİNANSAL KİRALAMA A.Ş.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”), unless otherwise indicated.)

14

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provision is not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation.

Employee benefits

Reserve for employee severance payments

Reserve for employee severance payments represents the present value of the estimated total provision
of the future probable obligation of the Company arising from the retirement of the employees calculated
in accordance with the Turkish Labour Law. In accordance with existing social legislation and Turkish
Labour Law in Turkey, the Company is required to make lump-sum termination indemnities to each
employee whose employment is terminated due to retirement or for reasons other than resignation or
misconduct and who has completed at least one year of service (Note 17).

According to the  TAS 19 that is revised by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards
Authority with the Communiqué published  in Official Gazette  on 12 March 2013 numbered 28585,  in
the calculation of the employment termination benefit liabilities of the Bank, the recognition option of
the actuarial gains and losses  derived from the changes in actuarial assumptions or the differences
between actuarial assumptions and realizations in the income statement has been eliminated which is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

Short term employee benefits

Other short-term benefits includes vacation pay liabilities and employee bonuses. In accordance with
the existing labour law in Turkey, the employer is obliged to pay for unused leave days in case the
employee is entitled to permission and leaves work. Vacation pay liability is the amount of undiscounted
total liability that corresponds to the vacation days for which employees are entitled but have not yet
used them.

Accounts payable

Accounts payable are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortized cost,
using the effective interest rate method. The Company management considers that the carrying amount
of accounts payable approximates their fair value.

Revenue recognition

Direct finance leases consist of full-pay-out leases for various types of equipment. The excess of
aggregate contract lease rentals, plus the nominal residual value, over the original cost of the related
equipment represents the total revenue to be recognised over the term of the lease. The revenue is
recognised in order to provide a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment remaining in each
lease. Future gross lease rentals receivable, net of unearned future lease income, are classified as the net
investment in direct financing leases. Gross rentals due, but not received at the balance sheet date are
classified as receivable lease payments outstanding.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset or liability (or, where appropriate, a shorter period) to the
carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.

When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but does not
consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties
to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other
premiums or discounts.

Interest income and expense presented in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
include:

§ interest on financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost calculated on an
effective interest basis;

§ interest income and expense arising from currency swaps.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in Turkish lira at the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of the transactions. Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the income statement.

Reporting of cash flows

For the purposes of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include balances of cash and due
from banks with original maturity periods of less than three months (Note 5).

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Share capital

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are approved by the
Company’s shareholders. Dividends for the year that are declared after the balance sheet date are dealt
with in the post balance sheet events note.

Related parties

For the purpose of this report, the shareholders and the ultimate shareholders of the Company, members
of the key management personnel of the Company or its parent and the companies controlled
by/associated with all of the above are referred to as related parties (Note 23). A related party is a person
or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its financial statements.
(a) A person or a close member of that person's family is related to a reporting entity if that person:

(i)    has control or joint control over the reporting entity;
(ii)   has significant influence over the reporting entity; or
(iii)   is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the

reporting entity.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:
(i) The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each

parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).
(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture

of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).
(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third

entity.
(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the

reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).
(vii)  A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the

key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity
and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period are those events, favorable and unfavorable, that occur between the
end of the reporting period and the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Two types of events can be identified:

•  Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period (adjusting
events after the reporting period); and

•   Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period (non-adjusting events after
the reporting period).

The Company adjusts its financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting period and
discloses the material non-adjusting events after the reporting period in the notes to the financial
statements.

Comparative information

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared including comparative information in order
to enable readers to understand the trends in the financial position, performance and cash flows of the
Company. Where necessary, comparative information have been reclassified to conform to changes in
presentation in the current year so that the reclassification will result in a more appropriate presentation
of events or transactions.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The new standards, amendments and interpretations

The accounting policies adopted in preparation of the financial statements as at 31 December 2019 are
consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the adoption of new and amended IFRS
and IFRIC interpretations effective as of 1 January 2019. The effects of these standards and
interpretations on the Company’s financial position and performance have been disclosed in the related
paragraphs.

i) The new standards, amendments and interpretations which are effective as at 1 January 2019
are as follows:

IFRS 16 Leases

The IASB has published a new standard, IFRS 16 'Leases'. The new standard brings most leases on-
balance sheet for lessees under a single model, eliminating the distinction between operating and finance
leases. Lessor accounting however remains largely unchanged and the distinction between operating
and finance leases is retained. IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 'Leases' and related interpretations and is
effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019.

Lessees have recognition exemptions to applying this standard in case of short-term leases (i.e., leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of ’low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers, office
equipment, etc.). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee measures the lease liability at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date (i.e., the lease liability), at the same date
recognises an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset (i.e., the right-of-use asset) and
depreciates it during the lease term. The lease payments shall be discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the
lessee shall use the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate. Lessees are required to recognise the interest
expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset separately.

Lessees are required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g. a change
in the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine those payments). Under these circumstances, the lessee recognises the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. The standard is applied
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The standard did not have a significant impact
on the financial position or performance of the Company.

Amendments to IAS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures” (Amendments)

In October 2017, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.
The amendments clarify that a company applies IFRS 9 Financial Instruments to long-term interests in
an associate or joint venture that form part of the net investment in the associate or joint venture.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments excludes interests in associates and joint ventures accounted for in
accordance with IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. In this amendment, IASB
clarified that the exclusion in IFRS 9 applies only to interests a company accounts for using the equity
method. A company applies IFRS 9 to other interests in associates and joint ventures, including long-
term interests to which the equity method is not applied and that, in substance, form part of the net
investment in those associates and joint ventures. These amendments are applied for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The amendments did not have a significant impact on the financial
position or performance of the Company.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The new standards, amendments and interpretations (Continued)

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The interpretation clarifies how to apply the recognition and measurement requirements in “IAS 12
Income Taxes” when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments.

When there is uncertainty over income tax treatments, the interpretation addresses:
(a) whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately;
(b) the assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities;
(c) how an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits
and tax rates; and
(d) how an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances.

The interpretation is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The
interpretation did not have a significant impact on the financial position or performance of the Company.

Annual Improvements – 2015–2017 Cycle

In December 2017, the IASB issued Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015–2017 Cycle,
amending the following standards:

· IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements — The amendments to IFRS
3 clarify that when an entity obtains control of a business that is a joint operation, it remeasures
previously held interests in that business. The amendments to IFRS 11 clarify that when an
entity obtains joint control of a business that is a joint operation, the entity does not remeasure
previously held interests in that business.

· IAS 12 Income Taxes — The amendments clarify that all income tax consequences of dividends
(i.e. distribution of profits) should be recognised in profit or loss, regardless of how the tax
arises.

· IAS 23 Borrowing Costs — The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains
outstanding after the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes
part of the funds that an entity borrows generally when calculating the capitalisation rate on
general borrowings.

The amendments are effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The
amendments did not have a significant impact on the financial position or performance of the Company.

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement” (Amendments to IAS 19)

On 7 February 2018, the IASB published Amendments to IAS 19 “Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement” The amendments require entities to use updated actuarial assumptions to determine current
service cost and net interest for the remainder of the annual reporting period after a plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement occurs. These amendments are applied for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019. The amendments did not have a significant impact on the financial position or
performance of the Company.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments to IFRS 9)

The IASB issued minor amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments to enable companies to
measure some prepayable financial assets at amortised cost. Applying IFRS 9, a company
would measure a financial asset with so-called negative compensation at fair value through
profit or loss. Applying the amendments, if a specific condition is met, entities will be able to
measure at amortised cost some prepayable financial assets with so-called negative
compensation.

These amendments are applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The
amendments are not applicable for the Company and did not have an impact on the financial
position or performance of the Company.

ii) Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are issued but not yet effective up
to the date of issuance of the financial statements are as follows. The Company will make the necessary
changes if not indicated otherwise, which will be affecting the financial statements and disclosures,
when the new standards and interpretations become effective.

IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture (Amendments)

In December 2015, the IASB postponed the effective date of this amendment indefinitely pending the
outcome of its research project on the equity method of accounting. Early application of the amendments
is still permitted. The Company will wait until the final amendment to assess the impacts of the changes.

IFRS 17 - The new Standard for insurance contracts

The IASB issued IFRS 17, a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering
recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. IFRS 17 model combines a current balance
sheet measurement of insurance contract liabilities with the recognition of profit over the period that
services are provided. Certain changes in the estimates of future cash flows and the risk adjustment are
also recognised over the period that services are provided. Entities will have an option to present the
effect of changes in discount rates either in profit and loss or in OCI. The standard includes specific
guidance on measurement and presentation for insurance contracts with participation features. IFRS 17
will become effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021; early
application is permitted.

The ISB issued IFRS 17, a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering
recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. IFRS 17 model combines a current balance
sheet measurement of insurance contract liabilities with the recognition of profit over the period that
services are provided. IFRS 17 will become effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021; early application is permitted. The standard is not applicable for the Company and will
not have an impact on the financial position or performance of the Company.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3)

In October 2018, the IASB issued amendments to the definition of a business in IFRS 3 Business
Combinations. The amendments are intended to assist entities to determine whether a transaction should
be accounted for as a business combination or as an asset acquisition.

The amendments:
- clarify the minimum requirements for a business;
- remove the assessment of whether market participants are capable of replacing any missing

elements;
- add guidance to help entities assess whether an acquired process is substantive;
- narrow the definitions of a business and of outputs; and
- introduce an optional fair value concentration test.

The amendments to IFRS 3 are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020 and apply prospectively. Earlier application is permitted.

The amendments are not applicable for the Company and will not have an impact on the financial
position or performance of the Company.

Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8)

In October 2018, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS
8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors to align the definition of ‘material’
across the standards and to clarify certain aspects of the definition. The new definition states that,
’Information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of information, or both. An
entity will need to assess whether the information, either individually or in combination with other
information, is material in the context of the financial statements.

The amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 are required to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2020. The amendments must be applied prospectively and earlier application is permitted.

The amendments are not applicable for the Company and will not have an impact on the financial
position or performance of the Company.

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7- Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments issued to IFRS 9 and IAS 39 which are effective for periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020 provide certain reliefs for 4 fundamental matters in connection with interest rate
benchmark reform. These reliefs are related to hedge accounting as follows:

- Highly probable requirement
- Prospective Assessments
- Retrospective Assessments
- Separately identifiable risk components
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Reliefs used as a result of amendments in IFRS 9 and IAS 39 is aimed to be disclosed in financial
statements based on the amendments made in IFRS 7.

The amendments are not applicable for the Company and will not have an impact on the financial
position or performance of the Company.

Amendments to IAS 1- Classification of Liabilities as Current and Non-Current Liabilities

23 January 2020, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements. The
amendments issued to IAS 1 which are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, clarify
the criteria for the classification of a liability as either current or non-current. Amendments must be
applied retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors. Early application is permitted.

The amendments are not applicable for the Company and will not have an impact on the financial
position or performance of the Company.

NOTE 3 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
a. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the Company’s earnings or capital, or its ability to meet business objectives,
will be adversely affected by changes in the level or volatility of market rates or prices such as interest
rates including credit spreads, foreign exchange rates, equity prices and commodity prices. The
Company manages liquidity risk, foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk by considering market risk.
The core business of the Company is to serve clients’ financial needs; therefore typically the Company
acts as a commercial institution, an activity which could expose the Company to risks such as foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk.
b. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and
cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring
credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterparties, and continually assessing the
creditworthiness of counterparties.
Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business
activities or activities in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause
their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or
other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's
performance to developments affecting a particular industry or geographic location.
The Company seeks to manage its credit risk exposure through diversification of lending activities to
avoid undue concentrations of risks with individuals or Company’s customers in specific locations or
businesses. It also obtains security when appropriate.
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NOTE 3 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
The table below summaries the geographic distribution of the Company’s assets and liabilities:

2019 Assets % Liabilities %

Turkey 1,628,699 98.55 779,589 54.21
European countries 3,321 0.20 538,030 37.41
Other 20,697 1.25 120,458 8.38

1,652,717 100 1,438,077 100

2018 Assets % Liabilities %

Turkey 2,152,454 99.83 1,118,394 57.40
European countries 2,328 0.11 671,175 34.45
Other 1,391 0.06 158,786 8.15

2,156,173 100 1,948,355 100

Maximum exposure to credit risk

2019 2018

Credit risk exposures relating to balance sheet items:

Due from banks 169,495 199,690
Finance lease receivables 1,401,335 1,877,937
Receivables from insurance policies 5,066 4,228

c. Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is a result of the Company’s assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies. The Company has a foreign currency position as a result of its operations. The table below
summaries the Company’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk.

Foreign Currency
2019 USD EUR Total

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 11,546 157,668 169,214
Finance lease receivables 316,368 762,346 1,078,714
Other assets and prepaid expenses 1,050 8,032 9,082
Total assets 328,964 928,046 1,257,010

Liabilities
Funds borrowed 303,913 846,001 1,149,914
Account payables 1,902 4,351 6,253
Other liabilities 1,140 7,408 8,548
Total liabilities 306,955 857,760 1,164,715
Net balance sheet position 22,009 70,286 92,295

Net off-balance sheet position (20,822) (75,061) (95,883)
Financial derivative assets 19,101 - 19,101
Financial derivative liabilities 39,923 75,061 114,984
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NOTE 3 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

c.       Currency risk (continued)

Foreign Currency
2018 USD EUR Total

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 24,055 175,035 199,090
Finance lease receivables 337,302 1,109,686 1,446,988
Other assets and prepaid expenses 1,637 14,953 16,590
Total assets 362,994 1,299,674 1,662,668

Liabilities
Funds borrowed 491,730 1,166,266 1,657,996
Account payables 3,295 7,195 10,490
Other liabilities 920 6,731 7,651
Total liabilities 495,945 1,180,192 1,676,137
Net balance sheet position (132,951) 119,482 (13,469)

Net off-balance sheet position 135,178 (123,361) 11,817
Financial derivative assets 135,178 - 135,178
Financial derivative liabilities - 123,361 123,361

At 31 December 2019, assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet derivative financial instruments
denominated in foreign currency were translated into TL by using a foreign exchange rate of and TL
5.9402 = USD 1, TL 6.6506 = EUR 1 (2018: TL 5.2609 = USD 1, TL 6.0280= EUR 1).

The table below shows the Company’s sensitivity against 10% changes in USD and EUR rates against
TL in the income statement. In this analysis it has been assumed that all other variables, especially
interest rates, are being held constant

2019 2018
Profit and loss Equity Profit and loss Equity

USD 119 119 223 223
EUR (478) (478) (388) (388)
Total (359) (359) (165) (165)

In the case of appreciation of TL against USD and EUR 10%, totals shown above has equal or opposite
effect on the income statement.
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NOTE 3 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

d. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the possibility that the Company will be unable to fund its net funding requirements.
Liquidity risk can be caused by market disruptions or credit downgrades, which may cause certain
sources of funding to dry up immediately. The Company’s policy is to match cash outflow mainly
arising from repayments of the funds borrowed and cash inflow mainly arising from lease receivables
maintained in the portfolio. Repayment schedules of leasing contracts made with the customers are
structured considering the funding and equity base of the Company.

In addition, the Company maintains reasonable amount of cash at bank in order to protect itself against
the risk of deviation from the expected in and out cash flows in an unfavourable manner.

The following table presents the cash flows payable by the Company under non-derivative financial
liabilities remaining contractual maturities at the balance sheet date. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Company manages the inherent liquidity risk
based on expected undiscounted cash inflows.

Up to 3 3 to 12 Over No definite
2019 months months 1 year maturity Total

Funds borrowed 430,434 885,113 127,426 - 1,442,973
Total liabilities 430,434 885,113 127,426 - 1,442,973

Cash and cash equivalents 168,180 - - 1,315 169,495
Finance lease receivables 270,329 515,718 809,119 5,410 1,600,576
Assets held for managing liquidity
risk (contractual maturity dates) 438,509 515,718 809,119 6,725 1,770,071

Up to 3 3 to 12 Over No definite
2018 months months 1 year maturity Total

Funds borrowed 589,485 438,703 723,757 - 1,751,945
Debt securities issued 223,293 - - - 223,293
Total liabilities 812,778 438,703 723,757 - 1,975,238

Cash and cash equivalents 199,024 - - 666 199,690
Finance lease receivables 289,925 620,267 1,180,536 57,680 2,148,408
Assets held for managing liquidity
risk (contractual maturity dates) 488,949 620,267 1,180,536 58,346 2,348,098
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NOTE 3 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

e. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect the value or future
cash flows of financial instruments. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk as a result of
mismatches or gaps in the amounts of assets and liabilities that mature or re-price in a given period. The
Company manages this risk by matching the re-pricing of assets and liabilities through risk management
strategies. The table below summaries the average year-end interest rates by major currencies for
monetary financial instruments:

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
(%) (%)

Assets USD EUR TL USD EUR TL
Cash and cash equivalents 2.15 0.20 - 4.97 1.50 13.00
Finance lease receivables 7.61 5.68 22.24 7.23 5.40 20.41

Liabilities
Fund borrowed 5.43 3.22 16.67 5.63 3.75 23.88
Debt securities issued - - - - - 26.62

The table below summaries the Company’s exposure to interest rate risk on the basis of the remaining
period at the balance sheet to the re-pricing or contractual dates whichever is earlier.

2019
Up to 3
months

3 to 12
months Over 1 year

Non-interest
bearing Total

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 168,180 - - 1,315 169,495
Finance lease receivables 240,687 427,187 728,053 5,408 1,401,335
Other assets and prepaid expenses - - - 36,876 36,876
Derivative financial instruments - - - 6,561 6,561
Tangible assets, net - - - 19,853 19,853
Intangible assets, net - - - 1,458 1,458
Deferred tax assets - - - 17,139 17,139
Total assets 408,867 427,187 728,053 88,610 1,652,717

Liabilities
Funds borrowed 591,510 811,693 - - 1,403,203
Debt securities issued - - - - -
Accounts payable - - - 10,805 10,805
Other liabilities - - - 19,448 19,448
Other provisions - - - 1,251 1,251
Reserve for employee benefits - - - 3,370 3,370
Total liabilities 591,510 811,693 - 34,874 1,438,077
Net repricing gap  (182,643)  (384,506) 728,053 53,736 214,640
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NOTE 3 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

e. Interest rate risk (continued)

2018
Up to 3
months

3 to 12
months

Over 1
year

Non-interest
bearing Total

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 199,024 - - 666 199,690
Finance lease receivables 246,492 512,632 1,061,132 57,681 1,877,937
Other assets and prepaid expenses - - - 27,391 27,391
Derivative financial instruments - - - 11,253 11,253
Tangible assets, net - - - 19,729 19,729
Intangible assets, net - - - 1,494 1,494
Deferred tax assets - - - 18,679 18,679
Total assets 445,516 512,632 1,061,132 136,893 2,156,173

Liabilities
Funds borrowed 862,427 682,191 153,701 - 1,698,319
Debt securities issued 217,107 - - - 217,107
Account payables - - - 16,933 16,933
Other liabilities - - - 13,103 13,103
Other provisions - - - 139 139
Reserve for employee benefits - - - 2,754 2,754
Total liabilities 1,079,534 682,191 153,701 32,929 1,948,355
Net repricing gap (634,018) (169,559) 907,431 103,964 207,818

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both
non-derivatives and derivative instruments, if any, at the balance sheet date. For floating rate liabilities,
the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the balance sheet date was
outstanding for the whole year. 1% increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Company’s
profit for the year ended 31 December 2019 would decrease/increase by TL 1,782 (2018:
decrease/increase by TL 4,176). This is mainly attributable to the Company’s exposure to interest rates
on its variable rate funds borrowed.

f. Operational risk

The most comprehensive meaning of operational risk is considered to be any risk which is not classified
as market and credit risk. In managing operational risk, increasing the skills of the staff, improving the
job technology and job definitions, establishing the necessary internal controls and various insurances
are employed as main methods.
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NOTE 3 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
g. Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced sale or liquidation, and is best evidenced by a quoted
market price, if one exists.
The estimated fair values of financial instruments have been determined by the Company using available
market information and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, judgment is necessarily
required to interpret market data to estimate the fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein
are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Company could realise in a current market exchange.
Fair value of financial assets is measured according to the assumptions based on quoted bid prices of
similar assets, or amounts derived from cash flow models.

The fair values of certain financial assets excluding finance lease receivables and funds borrowed are
considered to approximate their respective carrying values due to their short-term nature. Fair value of
floating rate funds borrowed and debt securities in issue is considered to approximate their carrying
values.
The table below indicates the fair value of the financial assets which are stated at their carrying amounts:

2019 2018

Financial Assets
Finance lease receivables - Carrying amount 1,401,335 1,877,937
Finance lease receivables - Fair value 1,524,602 1,938,841

Financial Liabilities
Funds borrowed - Carrying amount 1,403,203 1,698,319
Funds borrowed - Fair value 1,403,162 1,690,404
Debt securities issued - Carrying amount - 217,107
Debt securities issued - Fair value - 216,918

The following tables present the Company’s assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value:

31 December 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Derivatives financial instruments - 6,561 -
Total assets                 -      6,561        -

31 December 2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Derivatives financial instruments - 11,253 -
Total liabilities                 - 11,253        -
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NOTE 4 - CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

a. Capital management
According to 12rd article of “regulation on the Establishment and Operations of Leasing, Factoring, and
Consumer Finance Companies” which was published in the Official Gazette dated 24 April 2013 and
numbered 28627, total shareholders’ equity cannot be less than 3% of total assets of the Company. As
of 31 December 2019, the related ratio is 13%. Therefore, as of 31 December 2019 there is no breach
of the lending limits.
The Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
Management’s experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances. Management also makes certain judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, in the process of applying the accounting policies. These disclosures supplement
the commentary significant accounting policies (Note 2) and financial risk management (Note 3).
Judgements that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements
and estimates that can cause a significant adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year include:

b. Impairment of financial assets
IFRS 9 replaced the “incurred loss” model in IAS 39 with an “expected credit loss” (ECL) model. In
this context, it has been necessary to evaluate how the economic factors that will be determined by
weighting according to the probabilities of realization affect the ECLs. The new impairment model is
applied to financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income or measured at amortized
cost (other than investments in equity instruments) and contract assets. The financial assets at amortized
cost consist of leasing receivables, purchased or originated credit impaired assets, and cash and cash
equivalents.

c.  Deferred tax asset recognition
Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit is probable. The
future taxable profits and the amount of tax benefits that are probable in the future are based on medium
term business plan prepared by Management and extrapolated results thereafter. The business plan is
based on Management expectations that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

NOTE 5 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2019 2018

Demand deposits 281 260
Time deposits - 340

Total TL denominated demand and time deposits at banks 281 600

Foreign currency denominated demand deposits at banks
(original maturity less than 3 months) 1,034 406
Foreign currency denominated time deposits at banks
(original maturity less than 3 months) 168,180 198,684

Total foreign currency denominated demand and time deposit at
banks 169,214 199,090

Total demand and time deposits at banks 169,495 199,690

For the purposes of cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents amounting to TL 169,493
(2018: TL 199,649) and comprised from due from banks excluding accrued interest.
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NOTE 6 - DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company has the following derivative instruments as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018:

“Currency swaps” are commitments to exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result in an
economic exchange of currencies or interest rates. Currency swaps involve the exchange of the principal
as well. The Company risks are represented by the potential cost of replacing the swap contracts if
counterparties fail to perform their obligation. This risk is monitored on an ongoing basis with reference
to the current fair value and the liquidity of the market. To control the level of risk taken, the Company
assesses counterparties using the same techniques as for its lending activities.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments provide a basis for comparison with
instruments recognized on the balance sheet but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash
flows involved or the current fair value of the instruments, and therefore, do not indicate the Bank’s
exposure to credit or price risks. The derivative instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable
(liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and interest rates relative to their terms.

2019
Contract/notional Fair values

Amount Assets Liabilities
Swap purchase / sale transactions 238,461 6,561 -
Total derivative assets 238,461 6,561 -

2018
Contract/notional Fair values

Amount Assets Liabilities
Swap purchase / sale transactions 258,539 11,253 -
Total derivative liabilities 258,539 11,253 -

NOTE 7 - FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

2019 2018

Gross finance lease receivables 1,531,331 2,059,012
Invoiced lease receivables 63,834 31,717
Gross finance lease receivables 1,595,165 2,090,729

Unearned finance income (199,241) (270,473)

Finance lease receivables 1,395,924 1,820,256

Impaired lease receivables 80,437 135,344
Less: 12 months ECL (stage 1) (1,449) (2,468)
Less: Lifetime ECL significant increase in credit risk (stage 2) (34,900) (21,549)
Less: Lifetime ECL impaired credits (stage 3) (38,677) (53,646)
Finance lease receivables (net) 1,401,335 1,877,937
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NOTE 7 - FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, finance lease receivables according to its interest variability is as
follows:

2019 2018
Fixed rate 1,324,775 1,708,596
Floating rate 71,149 111,660
Finance lease receivables 1,395,924 1,820,256

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the finance lease receivables have the following collection plans:

Period end 2019 2019
Gross Net

31 December 2020 786,045 667,872
31 December 2021 465,309 409,125
31 December 2022 254,516 234,547
31 December 2023 71,948 68,127
31 December 2024 and after 17,347 16,253

1,595,165 1,395,924

Period end 2018 2018
Gross Net

31 December 2019 912,088 760,285
31 December 2020 635,466 562,395
31 December 2021 341,634 309,209
31 December 2022 156,222 145,547
31 December 2023 and after 45,319 42,820

2,090,729 1,820,256
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NOTE 7 - FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Finance lease receivables can be analysed as follows:

2019 2018
12 months ECL (stage 1) 948,702 1,420,276
Lifetime ECL significant increase in credit risk (stage 2) 447,222 399,980
Lifetime ECL impaired credits (stage 3) 80,437 135,344

Gross 1,476,361 1,955,600
Less: 12 months ECL (stage 1) (1,449) (2,468)
Less: Lifetime ECL significant increase in credit risk (stage 2) (34,900) (21,549)
Less: Lifetime ECL impaired credits (stage 3) (38,677) (53,646)
Finance lease receivables (net) 1,401,335 1,877,937

As at 31 December 2019, TL 496,204 of the total collaterals (2018: TL 453,941) are related with the
impaired finance lease receivables amounting to TL 9,881 (2018: TL 12,743).
The aging of past due but not impaired finance lease receivables are as follows:

2019 2018
Invoiced Remaining Invoiced Remaining
Amount Principal Amount Principal

0-30 days 49,067 275,581 8,987 167,356
31-60 days 8,403 67,394 6,937 97,872
61-90 days 6,364 31,808 15,793 149,778

63,834 374,783            31,717415,006

The aging of impaired finance lease receivables is as follows:

2019 2018

91-150 days 18,516 39,134
151-240 days 11,937 25,084
241-365 days 9,506 14,187
366 days and over 40,478 56,939

80,437 135,344
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NOTE 7 - FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
Movements in provision for impaired finance lease receivables are as follows:

2019 2018
At 1 January (77,663) (27,671)
Impairment loss (46,461) (38,642)
Effect of IFRS 9 transition - (22,456)
Recoveries of amounts previously impaired (including foreign
exchange differences) 1,624 970
Write-off (*) 47,474 10,136
At 31 December (75,026) (77,663)

(*) Impaired finance lease receivables and its ECL amounting to 47,474 were derecognised from the accounts. The effect of
FX valuation amounting to TL 6,930 is not included in the table above (31 December 2018: The write-off balance consists of
the reversal of allowance of impairment loss on the sold impaired finance lease receivables to a local asset management
company on 25 December 2018. The effect of FX valuation amounting to TL 2,369 is not included in the table above).

Economic sector risk concentrations for the finance lease receivables are as follows:

2019 % 2018 %
Textile 257,232 18.50 322,398 18
Other Production Industry 243,286 17.50 303,601 17
Metal Processing 220,419 15.80 329,880 18
Wholesaling and Retailing 208,640 15.00 194,577 11
Construction 165,840 12.00 268,311 15
Other Services 106,936 7.50 139,988 8
Transportation and Warehousing 43,446 3.00 64,376 4
Agriculture 39,813 3.00 54,128 3
Mining 32,802 2.00 51,744 3
Health 31,626 2.00 43,301 2
Food, Beverage & Tobacco 18,483 1.50 22,632 1
Electricity and Gas 17,232 1.50 21,204 -
Tourism 9,566 0.50 3,325 -
Real Estate Brokerage 603 0.20 791 -
Total 1,395,924 100 1,820,256 100

Minimum finance lease receivables consist of rentals receivable over the terms of leases. As per the
lease agreements made with lessees, the ownership of the items leased is transferred to the lessees at the
end of the lease term.

As of 31 December 2019, neither past due nor impaired finance lease receivables amounting to TL
390,530 (2018: TL 273,488) and past due but not impaired receivables amounting to TL 23,839 (2018:
TL 38,346) have been renegotiated, rescheduled or revised.

Depending on the customers’ inability to repay its obligations arising from financial leases or other
similar economic factors, the Company cancelled some of the lease contracts signed with its customers.
These related assets may be re-leased to the same customer or to the other customers or; may be sold to
the third parties, depending upon circumstances.
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NOTE 7 - FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As of 2019 and 2018, the Company obtained the following collaterals from its customers except the
goods subjected to finance lease agreements:

2019 2018

Mortgages 224,211 205,964
Pledged assets 81,673 56,062
Buyback guarantees 70,378 44,018
Capital share transfer 60,951 53,981
Transfer of rights of receivables 46,789 64,211
Guarantee letters 9,801 12,846
Cash blockage 1,306 15,560
Cheques received 713 631
Life insurance 346 632
Guarantee notes 36 36
Total 496,204 453,941

Finance lease receivables are further analysed as a part of the balance sheet in the notes: related party
transactions (Note 23) and financial risk management (Note 3).

NOTE 8 – TANGIBLE ASSETS

Land and
Buildings

Equipment,
Furniture and

Fixtures Total

1 January 2019, net book value 19,369 360 19,729
Additions 301 356 657
Disposals (10) (59) (69)
Depreciation charge for the year (394) (119) (513)
Depreciation effects of disposals 1 48 49
31 December 2019 19,267 586 19,853

31 December 2019
Cost 19,859 1,059 20,918
Accumulated depreciation (592) (473) (1,065)
Net book value 19,267 586 19,853
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NOTE 8 – TANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Land and
Buildings

Equipment, Furniture
and Fixtures Total

1 January 2018, net book value 685 160 845
Additions 15,759 289 16,048
Revaluation surplus on building (*) 3,651 - 3,651
Disposals (533) (519) (1,052)
Depreciation charge for the year (193) (70) (263)
Depreciation effects of disposals - 500 500
31 December 2018 19,369 360 19,729

31 December 2018
Cost 19,568 761 20,329
Accumulated depreciation (199) (401) (600)
Net book value 19,369 360 19,729
(*) The Company applies a revaluation model for the buildings in accordance with IAS 16 Accounting Standard for Recognition
of Tangible Fixed Assets. As a result of the revaluation, the increase in the book value of the buildings has been recognized
under “Items that will never be reclassified to profit or loss”. As a result of the evaluation of buildings, as of 31 December
2018, tangible assets have an increase of TL 3,651 before tax. Fair value of the building is determined by an appraisal firm
authorized by the BRSA and the Capital Markets Board.

NOTE 9 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Total
Cost
1 January 2019, net book value 1,494
Additions 437
Accumulated amortization
Amortisation charge for the year (473)
31 December 2019 1,458

31 December 2019
Cost 4,129
Accumulated amortisation (2,671)
Net book value 1,458

Total
Cost
1 January 2018, net book value 1,213
Additions 701
Disposals (241)
Accumulated amortization
Amortisation charge for the year (413)
Disposals 234
31 December 2018 1,494

31 December 2018
Cost 3,692
Accumulated amortisation (2,198)
Net book value 1,494
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NOTE 10 - OTHER ASSETS AND PREPAID EXPENSES

2019 2018

Equipment to be leased 26,870 14,037
Prepaid expenses 3,394 7,756
Receivables from insurance policies 4,853 4,002
Prepaid taxes 563 421
Other 1,196 1,175
Total 36,876 27,391

Equipments to be leased consist of assets purchased for the financial lease agreements signed in the
current period, which will be transferred to lessees in the subsequent period.
NOTE 11 -  FUNDS BORROWED

2019 2018
Original
Amount

TL
Equivalent

Interest
Rate (%)

Original
Amount

TL
Equivalent

Interest
Rate (%)

Fixed interest EUR 57,293 381,033 2,91 77,140 465,001 4.20
USD 31,006 184,183 5,75 63,326 333,151 5.55

TL 253,289 253,289 16,67 40,323 40,323 23.88

Floating interest EUR 52,025 345,997 3,50 20,954 126,313 3.28
USD 20,156 119,729 4,94 9,953 52,361 5.88

Short-term 1,284,231 1,017,149

Fixed interest EUR - - - 25,498 153,700 3.50

Floating interest EUR 17,889 118,972 3,37 69,883 421,252 3.47
USD - - - 20,190 106,218 5.78

Medium/long -
term 118,972 681,170
Total 1,403,203 1,698,319

Floating rate funds borrowed bear interest at rates fixed in advance for periods of three and six months.
Repayments of medium/long-term funds borrowed are as follows:

2019 2018
Fixed Rate Floating Rate Fixed Rate Floating Rate

2019 - - 838,475 178,674
2020 818,505 465,726 153,700 419,670
2021 - 53,094 - 48,111
2022 - 53,293 - 48,291
2023 - 12,585 - 11,398
Total 818,505 584,698 992,175 706,144
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NOTE 12 -  DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED

2019 2018

Bonds issued - 217,107
Total - 217,107

The Company’s issued debt securities details are as follows:

31 December 2019: None.

31 December 2018
Type ISIN Code Nominal Maturity Amount Interest Interest

Amount Date Rate Payment
Issued Term

Bond TRFALFK11917 90,000 17 January 2019 88,904 29.00 On maturity
date

Bond TRFALFK21916 100,000 27 February 2019 96,185 25.30 On maturity
date

Bond TRFALFK31915 27,000 01 March 2019 25,968 24.00 On maturity
date

Bond TRFALFK31923 6,293 01 March 2019 6,050 24.00 On maturity
date

223,293 217,107

Coupon interest rates of the bonds and treasury bills issued by the Company in 2019 and 2018 are fixed.

2019 2018
Original
Amount

TL
Equivalent

Interest
Rate (%)

Original
Amount

TL
Equivalent

Interest Rate
(%)

Short-term - 217,107

Fixed interest TL - - - 217,107 217,107 26.62
Total - 217,107

NOTE 13 - ACCOUNT PAYABLES

2019 2018
Insurance policy payables 7,209 12,028
Payables to suppliers 3,476 4,760
Other 120 145
Total 10,805 16,933
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NOTE 14 - OTHER LIABILITIES

2019 2018
Advances received 16,383 8,231
Prepayments from customers 1,389 2,058
Value Added Tax ("VAT") payable 1,084 2,479
Other taxes payable 253 297
Other 339 38
Total 19,448 13,103

Advances received are related with the amounts received from customers regarding the financial leasing
agreements.
NOTE 15 - TAXATION
Components of tax income/expenses for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

2019 2018

Deferred tax income / (expense) (1,224) 565

(1,224) 565

Corporate Tax

While the corporate tax rate was at the rate of 20% since 1 January 2016, for all companies, such rate
has been set as 22% for the tax bases of the years 2018, 2019, and 2020 based on the legislation of the
Amendment on Certain Tax Laws and Other Laws no. 7061. Furthermore, the Council of Ministers has
been authorized to reduce the rate of 22% down to 20%. This rate is applied to tax base which is
calculated by adding certain non deductable expenses for tax purposes and deducting certain exemptions
(like dividend income) and other deductions on accounting income. If there is no dividend distribution,
no further tax charges are made.
Dividends paid to non-resident corporations, which have a place of business in Turkey, or resident
corporations are not subject to withholding tax. Otherwise, dividends paid are subject to withholding
tax at the rate of 15%. An increase in capital is not considered as a profit distribution.
Corporations are required to pay advance corporation tax quarterly at the rate of 20% (2018, 2019 and
2020: 22%) on their corporate income. Advance tax declaration is made by the 14th day of the following
month and payable by the 17th day of the second month following each calendar quarter end by
companies. Advance tax paid by corporations is credited against the annual corporation tax liability. If,
despite offsetting, there remains a paid advance tax amount, it may be refunded or offset against other
liabilities to the government.
In accordance with Tax Law No: 5024 “Law Related to Changes in Tax Procedure Law, Income Tax
Law and Corporate Tax Law” that was published on the Official Gazette on 30 December 2003 to amend
the tax base for non-monetary assets and liabilities, effective from 1 January 2004, the income and
corporate taxpayers will prepare the statutory financial statements by adjusting the non-monetary assets
and liabilities according to inflation adjustments. In accordance with the aforementioned law’s
provisions, in order to apply inflation adjustment, the cumulative inflation rate (State Institute of
Statistics-Wholesale Price Indices) over the last 36 months and 12 months must exceed 100% and 10%,
respectively. Inflation adjustment has not been applied as these conditions were not met for the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.
In Turkey, there is no procedure for a final and definitive agreement on tax assessments. Companies file
their tax returns within the 25th of the fourth month following the close of the financial year to which
they relate. Tax returns are open for 5 years from the beginning of the year that follows the date of filing
during which time the tax authorities have the right to audit tax returns, and the related accounting
records on which they are based and may issue re-assessments based on their findings.
Under the Turkish taxation system, tax losses can be carried forward to offset against future taxable
income for up to 5 years. Tax losses cannot be carried back to offset profits from previous periods.
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NOTE 15 – TAXATION (Continued)

Exemption for investment allowance

The expression of “just belongs to 2006, 2007 and 2008” in the 193 numbered Income Tax Law’s
temporary 69th clause is cancelled due to the Constitutional Court’s 2009/ 144 numbered decision,
published in the Official Gazette at 8 January 2010 and restated due to the 6009 numbered laws 5 clause
and use of investment allowance exemption which was published and validated at 1 August 2010 and
27659 numbered Official Gazette. With the new regulation, the discounted amount of investment
incentives exemption will be used in tax base determination but is anticipated as not to exceed 25%
profit of the related year. Also, with this new change, corporate tax ratio in effect is determined as
(20%), not 30%, for the entities utilizing investment incentive. In its meeting dated 9 February 2014,
the Constitutional Court decided to annul the phrase of “the amount subject to deduction in terms of
investment allowance exemption may not exceed 25% of the relevant year's income” which was added
to the first paragraph of the Temporary Article 69 of the Income Tax Law, as it was found to be
unconstitutional. Additionally in the same meeting of the Constitutional Court,  as the aforementioned
phrase was annulled with the decision dated 9 February 2013 and numbered E.2010/93 K. 2013/20 the
Constitutional Court has ruled that the decision shall not get into effect until the date it is published in
the Official Gazette, in order to prevent the occurrence of hardly recoverable or unrecoverable losses
and difficulties that would result from the implementation of the aforementioned decision.

Based on the decision of the Constitutional Court mentioned above, the Company Management
recognized deferred tax assets on the unused investment allowance amounting to TL 20,074 which has
been calculated based on its best estimates (31 December 2018: TL 4,416).

Transfer Pricing

In Turkey, the transfer pricing provisions have been stated under the Article 13 of Corporate Tax Law
with the heading of “disguised profit distribution via transfer pricing”. The General Communiqué on
disguised profit distribution via Transfer Pricing dated 18 November 2007 sets details about
implementation.

If a taxpayer enters into transactions regarding sale or purchase of goods and services with related
parties, where the prices are not set in accordance with arm's length principle, then related profits are
considered to be distributed in a disguised manner through transfer pricing. Such disguised profit
distributions through transfer pricing are not accepted as tax deductible for corporate income tax
purposes. Purchase, sale, manufacturing and construction operations, leasing and leasing transactions,
borrowing and issuing money, bonuses, fees and similar transactions that require payments are
considered as purchase or sale of goods or services in every condition. Companies are required to fill in
the transfer pricing form which will be included in the annex of the annual corporate tax return. In this
form, the amounts of all transactions with related companies and the methods of transfer pricing related
to these transactions are specified in the related accounting period.

Deferred tax
Under IAS 12, which deals with income taxes, deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deferred tax asset can be utilized
and deferred tax assets should be reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realized.
Corporate Tax Law has been amended with Article 91 of the Law, No. 7061 effective upon promulgation
in the Official Gazette, No. 30261, dated 5 December 2017; and the corporate tax levied on the corporate
income has been increased from 20% to 22% to be applied for the income belonging to 2018, 2019 and
2020. The Bank calculates deferred tax at the relevant rates considering the periods in which deferred
tax assets and liabilities will be fulfilled. However, because of the corporate tax rate is 20% and
applicable to post 2020, 20% tax rate is used for temporary differences expected/expected to be closed
after 2020.
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NOTE 15 – TAXATION (Continued)
As of 31 December 2019 and 2018 the Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following
items:

Temporary
differences

 Deferred tax
assets/

(liabilities)
2019 2018 2019 2018

Allowance for impairment loss on finance receivables 46,380 70,935 9,941 15,352
Unused investment allowances with stoppage 45,494 34,204 1,001 752
Unused investment allowances without stoppage 23,590 20,074 5,179 4,416
Tax loss carry forward 5,025 - 1,105 -
Provision for employee benefits 3,370 2,893 741 617
Other 4,220 2,301 914 506
Deferred tax assets 18,881 21,643
Accrued income on derivative transactions (6,561) (11,253) (1,443) (2,476)
Difference between carrying value and tax base of tangible and intangibles (737) (737) (147) (147)
Prepaid commissions (577) (1,319) (127) (290)
Other (115) (230) (25) (51)
Deferred tax liabilities (1,742) (2,964)
Deferred tax assets, net 17,139 18,679

Movement of the net deferred tax asset is as follows:

2019 2018
January 1, 2019 18.679 13.174
Deferred tax recognized in profit or loss (1.224) 565
Deferred tax recognized in other comprehensive income (316) -
Effect of IFRS 9 transition - 4.940
December 31, 2019 17.139 18.679

NOTE 16 - OTHER PROVISIONS

2019 2018

Provisions for outstanding claims 1,251 139
Total 1,251 139

At 31 December 2019, the Company is involved in number of legal disputes, The Company’s lawyer’s
advice that, owing the developments in some of these cases; it is probable that the company will be
found liable. Therefore, the management has recognised a provision as the best estimate of the amount
to settle these potential obligations.

NOTE 17 - RESERVE FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

2019 2018

Provision for personnel performance bonus 2,601 1,743
Reserve for employee severance payments 564 713
Vacation pay liability 205 298

3,370 2,754
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NOTE 17 - RESERVE FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

Under the Turkish Labour Law, the Company is required to pay termination benefits to each employee
who has completed at least one year of service and whose employment is terminated without due cause,
is called up for military service, dies or who retires after completing 25 years of service (20 years for
women) and achieves the retirement age. Since the legislation was changed on 8 September 1999, there
are certain transitional provisions relating to length of service prior to retirement.

The liability is not funded, as there is no funding requirement.

IFRS requires actuarial valuation methods to be developed to estimate the enterprise’s obligation under
defined benefit plans. In the financial statements, the Company reflected a liability calculated using the
projected unit credit method and based upon the factors derived using their experience of personnel
terminating their services and being eligible to receive employment termination benefits. The provision
has been calculated by estimating the present value of the future probable obligation of the Company
arising from the retirement of the employees.

Accordingly the following actuarial assumptions were used in the calculations of the provision:
2019 2018

Discount rate (%) 4.72 4.72
Turnover rate to estimate the probability of retirement (%) - 9.50

The principal assumption is that the maximum liability for each year of service will increase in line with
inflation.
Movement of the reserve for employee severance payments for the year is as follows:

2019 2018

1 January 713 660
Service cost 660 204
Interest cost 34 31
Paid during the year (843) (182)
31 December 564 713

NOTE 18 - SHARE CAPITAL
At 31 December 2019, the Company’s authorised share capital consists of 10,000,000,000 shares with
a par value of Kuruş 1 each (2018: 10,000,000,000 shares with a par value of Kuruş 1 each). The
Company does not have any preferred shares in accordance with its main agreement.
As of 31 December 2019, the Company’s historical subscribed and issued share capital was TL 100,000
(historical terms) (31 December 2018: TL 100,000). The composition of shareholders and their
respective percentages of ownership can be summarized as follows:

2019 2018
% Amount % Amount

Alternatifbank A.Ş. 100 100,000 100 100,000

Total in historical TL 100 100,000 100 100,000

Differences on capital adjustments (13,523) (13,523)

86,477 86,477
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NOTE 19 - EARNINGS AND LEGAL RESERVES
The legal reserves consist of first and second reserves, appropriated in accordance with the Turkish
Commercial Code (“TCC”). The TCC stipulates that the first legal reserve is appropriated out of
statutory profits at the rate of 5% per annum, until the total reserve reaches 20% of the Company’s paid-
in share capital. The second legal reserve is appropriated at the rate of 10% per annum of all cash
distributions in excess of 5% of the paid-in share capital. Under the TCC, the legal reserves can only be
used to offset losses and are not available for any other usage unless they exceed 50% of paid-in share
capital.

NOTE 20 - EARNINGS PER SHARE

Earnings per share disclosed in the statement of profit or loss are determined by dividing net income by
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period concerned.

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 5,702 8,071
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 100,000 87,500
Basic earnings (expressed in full TL) 0.00057 0.00092

NOTE 21 - MARKETING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2019 2018

Transportation expenses 1,132 1,289
Consultancy expenses 889 828
Sundry taxes 796 543
Information technology system expenses 568 417
Rent expenses 218 709
Office expenses 135 323
Communication expenses 123 233
Printing and stationary expenses 59 90
Representation expenses 48 253
Other expenses 7 21

3,975 4,706

NOTE 22 - SALARIES AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

2019 2018

Wages and salaries 5,860 6,656
Increase in provision for employee benefits 1,944 1,894
Compulsory social security contributions 792 1,012
Other employee benefits 575 597

9,171 10,159
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NOTE 23 - TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES
a) Balances with related parties
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making the financial and operating decisions. The Company
is controlled by Alternatifbank A.Ş. (the Shareholder Company) which owns 100 % of the Company’s
shares. The ultimate owner of the Company is The Commercial Bank  (P.S.Q.C.). For the purpose of
these financial statements, the Shareholder Company, and their affiliated companies are referred to as
“related parties”. Related parties also include individuals that are principal owners, management and
members of the Company’s Board of Directors and their families.
A summary of the major transactions and balances with related parties during the related periods were
as follows:

2019 2018
Due from banks
Demand deposits
Alternatifbank A.Ş. 42 248
Time deposits
Alternatifbank A.Ş. 141,566 199,024

141,608 199,272

2019 2018
Lease receivables
Alternatifbank A.Ş. 236 -

236 -

2019 2018
Transactions for cash flow hedge
Alternatifbank A.Ş. 236,077 -

236,077 -

Borrowings
Alternatifbank A.Ş. 246,533 254,454
United Arab Bank P.J.S.C. 119,729 158,579

366,262 413,033

(b) Transactions with related parties:

2019 2018
Income from derivatives
Alternatifbank A.Ş. 5,535 428

5,535 428

Expense on derivatives
Alternatifbank A.Ş. 35 3,374

35         3,374
Other income
Alternatifbank A.Ş. 4 -

4 -
Rent income
Alternatif Yatırım Menkul Değerler A.Ş. 426 105

426 105
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NOTE 23 - TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties (Continued):

2019 2018
Interest income on placements and transactions with banks
Alternatifbank A.Ş. 2,580 1,663

2,580 1,663
Interest expense on funds borrowed
Alternatifbank A.Ş. 19,648 15,708
United Arab Bank P.J.S.C. 9,555 8,833

29,203 24,541
Service expenses
Alternatifbank A.Ş. 544 462

544 462

Commission expenses
Alternatif Yatırım Menkul Değerler A.Ş. 320 953
United Arab Bank P.J.S.C. 364 392
Alternatifbank A.Ş. 145 294

829 1,639

(c) Off-balance sheet items

2019 2018
Guarantee letters
Alternatifbank A.Ş. 1,102 1,555

1,102 1,555

As of 31 December 2019, the Company has time deposits amounting to USD 1,910, EUR 19,580 at
related party bank Alternatifbank A.Ş. with an average interest rate of 2.15%, 0.15% respectively (31
December 2018: USD 4,530, EUR 29,000 and TL 340 at related party bank - Alternatifbank A.Ş. with
an average interest rate of 4.97%, 1.50% and %13.00 respectively). Also the Company has demand
deposits at related party bank (Alternatifbank A.Ş) amounting TL 42 (31 December 2018:  TL 248).

(d) Key Management’s Remuneration:

As of 31 December 2019, the executive members and key management personnel of the Company’s
management received and accrued salaries and bonuses total amounting to TL 1,842 (2018: TL 2,915).
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NOTE 24 - OTHER INCOME / (EXPENSE), NET

2019 2018
Commission income, net 2,284 3,123
Bank charges and commissions (3,741) (3,550)
Increase in legal provisions (1,112) -
Sundry expenses (52) (836)
Other (54) 348

(2,675) (915)

Sundry agreement income / (expenses) consists of tax, legal, expertise, translation and other expenses
which have been reimbursed by clients.

NOTE 25 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In the normal course of activities, the Company undertakes commitments and incurs certain contingent
liabilities that are not presented in these financial statements. The following is a summary of significant
commitments and contingent liabilities at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

TL 746 and TL 751 of rent expenses were reflected as of 31 December 2019 and 2018 respectively in
the income statements due to the operating lease agreement for vehicles. In January 2019, lease
agreement was evaluated according to TFRS 16.

Future minimum lease payments under operating lease agreements are as follows:

2019 2018

Next 1 year 421 743
1 year through 5 years 46 344
Total 467 1,087

Other commitments:

At 31 December 2019, the Company obtained letters of credits and guarantee letters amounting to TL
124,617 (2018: TL 121,839) and submitted to various public authorities.

NOTE 26 - EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

None.
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